





[image: ]Present:

Wednesday, November 05, 2025 at 04:00 PM Council Chambers
47, Wilmot St. S. Drumbo, ON
Streamed live to Township of Blandford-Blenheim YouTube Channel

Mayor M. Peterson, Councillor D. Barnes, Councillor N. Demarest, Councillor B. Banbury and Councillor T. Young

Staff:
CAO Brick, Clerk Matheson, Director of Finance Krug, Drainage Superintendent Degier, Director of Protective Services Davidson, Director of Public Works Borton,
Chief Building Official Belanger, Manager of Community Services Baer, and Deputy Clerk Kevin Brandt

1. Welcome

2. Call to Order
3. Approval of the Agenda RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-01
Moved by - Councillor Demarest
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the agenda for the November 5th, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council be adopted as printed, and circulated.

Carried

4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
None.

5. Minutes
5.a October 15th, 2025 Minutes of Council RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-02
Moved by - Councillor Barnes
Seconded by - Councillor Banbury


Be it hereby resolved that the minutes of the October 15th, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council be adopted, as printed and circulated.

Carried

6. Business Arising from the Minutes
None.

7. Public Meetings
None.

8. Delegations/Presentations

8.a Hanne Yager, Policy Planner, Oxford County, re: Proposed Updates to the Implementation Policies of the Official Plan
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-03
Moved by - Councillor Barnes
Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

Be it hereby resolved that the presentation from Hanne Yager, Policy Planner, Oxford County, regarding Proposed Updates to the Implementation Policies of the Official Plan be received as information.

Carried

8.b Ronda Stewart, Economic Development Director, Rural Oxford Economic Development, re: 2026-2030 Economic Development Strategic Plan
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-04
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

Be it hereby resolved that the presentation from Ronda Stewart, Economic Development Director, Rural Oxford Economic Development, regarding the 2026-2030 Economic Development Strategic Plan be received as information.

Carried

9. Correspondence

9.a Specific
Township of Blandford-Blenheim Council Minutes


9.a.1 Lowell Ewert & Peter and Irene Lass, Residents, re: Proposal to Decommission a portion of River and Oxford-Waterloo Road, east of the Closed Bridge
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-05
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the correspondence from Lowell Ewert & Peter and Irene Lass be received as information; and further,
That Council direct staff to provide a follow up report regarding the proposal.

Carried

9.a.2 Cathy Dibble, Thames Valley Regional Communication Coordinator, re: Waiving of the 30% Facility Booking Fee
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-06
Moved by - Councillor Young
Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that the correspondence from Cathy Dibble be received as information; and further,
That Council direct staff to forgo the booking fee, with the caveat that if there is interest in the facility for the same date and time that the group be notified to make a decision on the booking within a week.

Carried

9.b General

9.b.1 Rural Oxford Economic Development Corporation, re: Mid-June to Mid-September 2025 Economic Development Activity Report
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-07
Moved by - Councillor Demarest
Seconded by - Councillor Banbury

Be it hereby resolved that the general correspondence item be received as information.

Carried

10. Staff Reports
10.a Jim Borton, Director of Public Works, PW-25-17 - Monthly Report RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-08
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Report PW-25-17 be received as information.

Carried

10.b Adam Degier, Drainage Superintendent, DS-25-03 - Appointment of Engineer – Sparks Drain
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-09
Moved by - Councillor Demarest
Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that Report DS-25-03 be received as information; and,

Whereas the Grand River Conservation Authority have not registered any comments to the petition for drainage works for the Lot 9 and 10 Concession 4, Blenheim; Blandford-Blenheim from John Pynenburg in the affected area of the existing private Sparks Drain; and further,

Be it resolved that Council appoints K Smart & Associates Ltd., 85 McIntyre Dr. Kitchener, Ont. N2R 1H6, to prepare a new drainage report as per the petition in accordance with Section 4 of the Drainage Act.


Carried

10.c Trevor Baer, Manager of Community Services, CS-25-20 - Partnership Agreement
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-10
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

Be it hereby resolved that Report CS-25-20 be received as information; and further,
That Council direct staff to enter into an agreement with the Drumbo Agricultural Society.

Carried

10.d Trevor Baer, Manager of Community Services, CS-25-21 - Partnership Programing - Adult Programs
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-11
Moved by - Councillor Barnes
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Report CS-25-21 be received as information.

Carried


10.e 









*10.f















10.g

Trevor Baer, Manager of Community Services, CS-25-22 - Monthly Report RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-12
Moved by - Councillor Young
Seconded by - Councillor Banbury

Be it hereby resolved that Report CS-25-22 be received as information.

Carried

Trevor Baer, Manager of Community Services, CS-25-23 - Plattsville Arena Canteen
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-13
Moved by - Councillor Young
Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

That Report CS-25-23 be received as information; and further,
That Council authorize staff to enter into an agreement with The Old Barn Café for the operation of the canteen at the Plattsville Memorial Community Arena for the 2025-2026 arena season.


Carried

Denise Krug, Director of Finance / Treasurer, TR-25-14 - 2026 Fees & Charges
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-14
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Report TR-25-14 be received as information; and further,

That Council authorize the Director of Finance to prepare a fees and charges by-law for the December 3rd, 2025 Council meeting based upon Township fees and charges as outlined on the attached schedules.

Carried

10.h	Sarah Matheson, Director of Corporate Services / Clerk, DC-25-15 - Internet & Telephone Voting Provider for the 2026 Municipal Election
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-15
Moved by - Councillor Demarest
Seconded by - Councillor Barnes

Be it hereby resolved that Report DC-25-15 be received as information; and

Council authorizes the Clerk to enter into an agreement with both Intelivote Systems Inc. and DataFix for the provision of Internet and Telephone Voting in the 2026 Municipal Election.

Carried

11. Reports from Council Members
Mayor Peterson provided remarks regarding the upcoming Remembrance Day ceremonies taking place throughout the Township. He encouraged the public to attend and pay their respects to veterans and those currently serving. Ceremonies will take place in Chesterfield on November 9, 2025, and in Drumbo, Plattsville, and Bright on November 11, 2025.

12. Unfinished Business
None.

13. Motions and Notices of Motion
None.

14. New Business
None.

15. Closed Session
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-16
Moved by - Councillor Young

Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

Be it hereby resolved that Council move into Closed Session 5:00 p.m. to discuss:

a. CAO-25-29, The security of the property of the municipality or local board [s. 239 (2) (a)].
Re: Security of Property of the Municipality

b. CAO-25-30, A trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations information, supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board, which, if disclosed, could reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the competitive position or interfere significantly with the contractual or other negotiations of a person, group of persons, or organization [s. 239 (2) (i)].
Re: Human Resources Policy Manual/Employee Relations Updates

c. CAO-25-31, The security of the property of the municipality or local board [s. 239 (2) (a)].
Re: Proposed Disposition of Municipal Capital Facility

d. CAO-25-32, The security of the property of the municipality or local board [s. 239 (2) (a)].
Re: Land Transfer Matters

e. CAO-25-33, Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose [s. 239 (2) (f)].
Re: Legal Update on Order Prohibiting Occupancy

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-17
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that Council does now adjourn from Closed Session and resume into Open Session at 6:17 p.m. and reports the following:

That Council provided direction to the CAO regarding Reports CAO-25-29, CAO-25-30, CAO-25-31, CAO-25-32, and CAO-25-33.


Carried

16. By-laws

16.a Bylaw 2518-2025, Being a By-law to amend Zoning By-Law Number 1360-2002, as amended (ZN1-22-07).
16.b By-law 2519-2025, Being a By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council. RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-18
Moved by - Councillor Barnes
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the following By-laws be now read a first and second time:
a. By-law 2518-2025, Being a By-law to amend Zoning By-law 1360-2002, as amended; and,
b. By-law 2519-2025, Being a By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council.

Carried
RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-19
Moved by - Councillor Banbury
Seconded by - Councillor Young

Be it hereby resolved that the following By-laws be now read a third and final time:
a. By-law 2518-2025, Being a By-law to amend Zoning By-law 1360-2002, as amended; and,
b. By-law 2519-2025, Being a By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council.

Carried

17. Other
None.
18. Adjournment and Next Meeting RESOLUTION 2025-11-05-20
Moved by - Councillor Young
Seconded by - Councillor Demarest

Whereas business before Council has been completed at 6:18 p.m.;

Be it hereby resolved that Council adjourn to meet again on Wednesday, November 19th, 2025 at 4:00 p.m.

Carried





Mark Peterson, Mayor




Sarah Matheson, Clerk
image1.jpeg




